
City of Charlottesville 
Department of Parks and Recreation 
Post Office Box 911 
Charlottesville, Virginia  22902 
434-970-3260 

“A World Class City” 

 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 
April 15, 2015 

 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
 
ADMIN-1 Adoption of Minutes – March 18, 2015 Advisory Board Meeting 
 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
I-1  Aquatics Summer Season Preview 
I-2  McIntire Park Design Status Report 
I-3  Skate Park Design Status Report 
I-4  Tonsler Park Basketball Court Renovations 
I-5  Draft Integrated Pest Management Policy 
 
 
CHAIRMAN’S MATTERS 
BOARD MATTERS 
DIRECTOR’S MATTERS 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

City of Charlottesville 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – Agenda Item 
April 15, 2015 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE – 1 
 
Adoption of Minutes – March 18, 2015 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Meeting 
 
ACTION REQUIRED: 
Advisory Board adoption of the minutes of the March 18, 2015 meeting. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Minutes of March 18, 2015 meeting. 

 
 
 



 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
MINUTES 

March 18, 2014 
 The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board held a regular meeting on Wednesday, March 18, 2015 
at 5:00 p.m. held @ Carver Recreation Center.  Members present were: Ruth Barnett, Byron Brown, 
Llezelle Dugger, Anne Hemenway, Jody Lahendro, Ned Michie, Scott Morgan, Maurice Walker and 
Mary Wilson. Members absent:  David Hirschman 
Staff:    Brian Daly, Doug Ehman, Vic Garber and Bernie Garrison 
Minutes: 

• Correct name to Scott Morgan instead of Scott Marshall 

Motion: 
• Llezelle Dugger made a motion to approve January 21 minutes with name correction, Ruth 

Barnett second, motion was unanimously approved. 

Athletics Programming Update 
• Bernie Garrison, Recreation Supervisor, stated that he had been with the Parks and Recreation 

department almost 18 years.  His responsibilities include adult athletics, youth sports, and 
community events.  He reported the following: 

o Approximately 160 teams, camps which include volleyball, t-ball 
o Special events include Hop into Spring, Sundays Sundown sponsored by Bama Works (6 

events), Father/Daughter dance – held two nights approximately 600 participants; 
Mother/Son dance – approximately 160 participants 

o Field allocation – Little League, football, private school rentals.   
o Youth basketball – average 450-500 participants 
o Volleyball/softball;  34 women’s teams – volleyball;  volleyball teams registration fills on 

first day – men & women;  
• Byron Brown stated that he had attended the Father/Daughter dance and was very impressed. 

McIntire Park Design Status Report 
• Brian Daly reported that the design phase is done for the east side of McIntire Park & Skatepark 

and that it was on City Council agenda this week and both plans were approved, Skatepark was 
unanimous, East side was 4-1 vote. 

• Design team meeting in next couple of weeks 
• Contract extended for a second time 
• City Council will move forward with construction documents, come up with phasing plan 
• Trail system – establish connection, will do with staff, will be closing McIntire Golf Course due to 

new interchange area is not safe, trail development, not many holes left.  Have offered pass to 
Meadowcreek golf course to users for this next year.   

• Draft memorandum of agreement with Botanical Garden presented to City Council.  Framework 
generic sense of who would be responsible for what.  Addressed updated MOU, City Council 
would like city staff present on Botanical Garden board.   

• City Council asked @ budget work session what would be the total cost for plans presented.   
• Applied for grant for $350,000 for Skatepark development, looking for other funding sources. 



 

• Large article in today’s newspaper on McIntire Park design. 
• City Council would like to see memorandum of understanding again when updated 
• Jody Lahendro asked how many citizens showed up for the Open House, Brian Daly replied 

approximately 75. 

Skatepark Design Status Update 
• Vic Garber stated that a design charette was set for April; final design presented; looking @ 

lighting plan for multi-purpose plan  
• Area will bring people into the area; bring in revenue for City 
• Next step – finalize construction costs; hope to be done with contract documents by end of May 
• Assessment of old restroom building, what it would take to expand & upgrade 
• Electrical component next big piece 
• Two final items – operations and maintenance plans 
• Funding strategy – looking @ grants, who could be supporters 
• Anne Hemenway asked how to keep non-emergency vehicles on emergency lane, Vic Garber 

replied that the answer would be part of operations questions 
• Ned Michie asked if there would be staff/no staff, fencing/no fencing @ Skatepark, – Vic Garber 

replied leaning for not staffing, stated it was the best practice around the country. 

Tonsler Park Basketball Court Renovations 
• Doug Ehman reported that it was out for bids and due the end of the month; will rotate courts 

north/south instead of east/west 
• Musco lighting system; construction end of April, finished by 4th of July 
• Scott Morgan asked what it takes to name areas like a basketball court, features, etc.; Brian Daly 

replied that there is a policy in place for this purpose. 
• Ned Michie stated that the pickle ball group was interested in a lighted outdoor court, asked if 

they can coordinate with basketball 
• Maurice Walker asked that when redoing courts if there could be more benches; Doug Ehman 

replied that there may be a portable benching system. 
• Construction cost – approximately $350,000 

 
Board Matters 

• Ruth Barnett stated that the trails @ Riverview Park look great; Ned Michie reported that there 
was a giant tree down near Cosners 

• Maurice Walker asked about Shakespeare in the Park for this year; Vic Garber replied that they  
will be doing again for four weekends this year, contract is being finalized – this year’s play will 
be Comedy of Errors 

• Mary Wilson – asked about the citizen complaint e-mails that board members have been 
receiving, what is protocol when complaints come in, what is the follow-up; Brian Daly replied 
that staff does address directly with the individuals.  



 

• Mary Wilson reported that she has been approached about Azalea Park gate being left open, 
reported that city staff are leaving open when getting trash; asked if it can remain unlocked in 
summer; Doug Ehman replied that the problem with being left open is with people going back in 
there 

• Anne Hemenway reported that she was @ McIntire Park City Council presentation on Monday, 
stated that Canton was impressive.  She also felt that there was a need for another orientation 
for new board members.  

• Llezelle Dugger stated that she wanted to give a heads up that there had been 20-30 calls from 
city swim team members who are now realizing that  Andrea Ross would not be coaching this 
summer; Brian Daly replied that a letter will be going out and that a job  posting has been out 
for approximately five weeks.  

• Ned Michie reported that there was going to be a Valley baseball league @ CHS and asked if 
staff knew?  Brian Daly replied that they have seen  some sketches but no plans 

• Jody Lahendro asked if there was a plan for more community gardens; Doug Ehman replied that 
there were 12 new plots @ Rives Park this year; stated that city cannot be primary provider of 
garden plots.  

Directors Matters 
• Reported that spray grounds will be opening the 3rd Saturday in May.  
• Community budget forum tonight – some revenue items  
• Smith Aquatic Center – reported on recent issues which included a power surge that caused the 

system that has control valves & electronic impulse to have locked valves in backwash position;  
piping broke, sanitation problems, closed pool for 2 ½ weeks, offered swimmers lap swimming 
@ Crow Pool; credited access pass for every day closed 

• Learned how staff could come together to reschedule, have made adjustments so won’t happen 
again 

• VSA Art Exhibit cancelled due to snow, rescheduled for this Friday @ Martin Luther King 
Performing Arts Center 

• Next board meeting will be Wednesday, April 15 

 
Motion 

• Llezelle Dugger made to motion to adjourn, Ruth Barnett second, motion was unanimously 
approved. 

• Meeting adjourned @ 6:40 pm 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
      Linda Daly  
      Secretary to the Advisory Board 



 



 

City of Charlottesville 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – Agenda Item 
April 15, 2015 
 
 
INFORMATION - 1 
 
Aquatics Summer Season Preview 
Phillip Seay, Aquatics Manager for the Department will provide an update on plans for the 
upcoming summer season for the outdoor aquatic facilities and programs.. 
 
 
INFORMATION - 2 
 
McIntire Park Design Status Report 
Staff will provide an update on the design process to complete the final plans for the east side of 
McIntire Park.  The current conceptual drawings for the park will be presented at the meeting. 
 
 
INFORMATION - 2 
  
Skate Park Design Status Update 
Staff will provide an update on the design process to complete the final plans for the skate park 
within the east side of McIntire Park.  The current conceptual drawings for the skate park will be 
presented at the meeting. 
 
 
INFORMATION - 4 
 
Tonsler Park Basketball Court Renovations 
Staff will provide a summary of the project status and the schedule for construction as a 
contractor has been selected. 
 
 
INFORMATION - 5 
 
Draft Integrated Pest Management Policy 
At the request of City Council, staff has developed a draft Policy on the Department’s Integrated 
Pest Management (IPM) Program.  This draft policy will be on the Monday, April 20, 2015 City 
Council Agenda.  A copy of the Draft Policy is attached for your information.  Staff will outline 
the highlights of the proposed Policy at the Advisory Board meeting. 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 

City of Charlottesville 
Parks and Recreation Department 

INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT POLICY 
DRAFT April 12, 2014 

 
INTRODUCTION: Integrated Pest Management (IPM) is a methodology that establishes an effective and 
environmentally sensitive response to pests, (insects, weeds, pathogens, rodent and other vertebrates).  
IPM establishes a sustainable approach to managing pests by combining biological, cultural, physical 
and, if necessary, chemical tools in a way that minimizes health, environmental and economic risks.  

For ten (10) years, the Charlottesville Parks and Recreation Department has utilized Integrated Pest 
Management landscape maintenance principles on City property that the Parks Division maintains. This 
plan outlines procedures to be formalized that when followed will protect the health and safety of the 
public and staff from pest and pesticide hazards.  Pests are organisms that damage plants, structures, 
infrastructure, or that impact human or animal health. Pesticides are any substance or mixture of 
substances intended for preventing, repelling, destroying, or mitigating any pest.  This plan is in 
compliance with all policies and regulations mandated by US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), US 
Department of Agriculture (USDA), and Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services 
Pesticide Services Division (VDACS).  

Objectives of this IPM plan include:  

• Elimination of significant threats caused by pests to the health and safety of staff and the public. 
• Prevention of loss or damage to City owned assets or property by pests. 
• Protection of environmental quality. 
• A progressive move over time to reduce chemical pest controls. 

This IPM plan will be stored in the office of the IPM Coordinator. 

IPM COORDINATOR: The City of Charlottesville Landscape Manager or their designee shall be the Parks 
and Recreation Department IPM Coordinator and be responsible to implement the IPM plan and to 
coordinate pest management-related communications between Parks and Recreation Department, its 
service providers, staff and visitors. The Landscape Manager and Parks Manager shall designate an 
employee of the Horticulture staff of Parks and Recreation Department to serve as the IPM Program 
Manager for the Parks Division. 

IPM COMMITTEE:  The Parks and Recreation Department will maintain an IPM or other safety-related 
committee with responsibility for annual review of the IPM program and for assisting the IPM 
Coordinator in resolving pest-related issues.  The committee will meet annually in January for program 
review, and may meet more frequently if required to determine shifts in approaches. 

Minutes will be taken of committee meetings and kept on file by the IPM Coordinator.  Membership will 
include the IPM Coordinator, IPM Program Manager, City Environmental Administrator, Parks Division 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Manager, Parks and Recreation Director, and a member from both the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board and the Tree Commission.  Both the Advisory Board and Tree Commission shall nominate a 
member to the IPM committee who has a background in landscape management, horticulture or related 
field.  An IPM Annual Report will be prepared by the committee and presented to the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board each March and subsequently forwarded to City Council each April.  The 
Annual Report will contain a summary of activity and initiatives of the preceding year, and a plan for the 
following year for the IPM program. 

POSTING AND NOTIFICATION OF PESTICIDE APPLICATIONS: The IPM Coordinator shall be responsible to 
conduct annual staff training on the proper procedures for posting and notification of planned and 
emergency applications of pesticides on facility grounds. 

When pesticide applications are scheduled on City property maintained by the Parks Division, staff and 
service providers shall provide notification in accordance with the law, including specifically: 

1. Posting a pest control information sign at a prominent place that is in or adjacent to the location 
of application.  All signs will include the date(s), product(s) applied, and staff contact 
information. 

2. Application area shall be marked with small yellow flag markers placed along the pedestrian 
sidewalk perimeter, spaced eight (8) feet apart on contiguous application areas exceeding 
twenty five (25) square feet (5X5).  Individually treated plants may be marked with a flag.  Large 
application areas may need to be closed to the public during and immediately following 
application. 

3. Application areas shall remain posted for twenty-four (24) hours after application or following 
regulations for posting required under law by VDACS. 

4. Providing pesticide application information to the school administration a minimum of twenty-
four (24) hours in advance of any application. 

RECORD KEEPING & PUBLIC ACCESS TO INFORMATION:   The Parks and Recreation Department, Parks 
Division will maintain records of all pesticide applications, and pesticide applicator licenses, as required 
by VDACS.   All IPM related records will be maintained for at least three (3) years.  Information regarding 
pest management activities will be made available to the public, by appointment, at the Parks Division 
administrative office at Pen Park. 

TRAINING: Parks and Recreation, Parks Division staff will be provided with training on the IPM policy at 
the time of hire and during annual update training.  Training will include the rationale for the IPM policy 
and program elements including use of pest scouting and prohibition on pesticide applications by non-
certified individuals. 

Additionally, designated staff including the IPM Coordinator and IPM Program Manager will provide 
advance training and directives to on-site Service Providers using pest control strategies. This training 
will improve the ability of Parks and Recreation staff to oversee Service Providers in compliance with 
Parks and Recreations IPM policy and plan. 



ATTACHMENT 1 

GENERAL IPM STRATEGIES:   IPM decision-making strategies shall use current, professional and 
comprehensive information regarding pest management.  These strategies may include education, 
exclusion, sanitation, maintenance, biological and mechanical controls, and with pre-approval by the 
IPM Coordinator, site-appropriate pesticides. 

All Integrated Pest Management decisions at Parks and Recreation, Parks Division shall consist of the 
following steps: 

1. Identification of pest species. 
2. Estimate pest populations and compare to established action thresholds. 
3. Select the appropriate management tactics based on current on-site information and available 

financial and human resources with the following procedure: 
• Structural and procedural modifications to reduce food, water, harborage and access 

used by pests. (site modifications, pruning, native plants, use of goats to control 
vegetation, irrigation, mulch, soil health) 

• Non-pesticide technologies such as trapping and monitoring devices, use of appropriate 
biological controls. (barriers, natural predators, beneficial microorganisms) 

• Appropriate pesticide compounds, formulations and application methods that present 
the lowest potential hazard to humans and the environment in the most effective 
manner. 

• Where appropriate non-synthetic pesticide products shall be evaluated and considered 
for use.  

4. Assess effectiveness of pest management. 
5. Keep appropriate records and documentation. 

Decisions concerning whether or not pesticides should be applied in a given situation will be based on a 
review of all available options.  Efforts will be made to minimize the use of pesticides by good sanitation 
practices, selection of pest-resistant plant materials, and appropriate horticultural practices.  

All pesticide storage, transportation, and application will be conducted in accordance with the 
requirement of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act; EPA regulations; OSHA 
regulations; VDACS Pesticide regulations.  No person shall apply, store, or dispose of any pesticide on 
Parks and Recreation managed property without an appropriate Pesticide Applicators License from 
VDACS.  All pesticide applicators will be trained in the principles and practices of IPM and the use of 
pesticides.  All applicators must comply with the IPM policy and follow appropriate regulations and label 
precautions when using pesticides in or around Parks Division managed properties.  Pesticide Service 
Providers must also comply with these requirements.  

PARKS AND RECREATION STAFF ROLES:  Parks and Recreation administration will provide support to 
assist the IPM Coordinator in maintaining an IPM program that moves toward pesticide reductions.  
Such support will include efforts to promptly address any structural, horticultural, or sanitation changes 
recommended by the Coordinator to reduce or prevent pest problems. Furthermore, Parks and 
Recreation administration will assist the Coordinator in budget development, staffing, and delivering 



ATTACHMENT 1 

materials and programs for staff, and the public to educate them about the importance of safe pest 
control.  

 

 

 

  



ATTACHMENT 1 

DRAFT RESOLUTION ADOPTING INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

WHEREAS; It shall be the policy of the City of Charlottesville to adopt and fully implement a grounds 
management policy embodying the principles of Integrated Pest Management (IPM) on City property 
maintained by the Parks and Recreation Department; and 

WHEREAS, IPM is the coordinated use of pest and environmental information with available methods to 
prevent unacceptable levels of pest damage with the least possible hazard to people, property, and the 
environment within available resources; and 

WHEREAS, IPM uses a progressive and sustainable approach using professional research based multi-
faceted strategies that minimize health, environmental risks and economic risks; and 

WHEREAS, Pests are potential threats to public health, community values, and ecological balance, and 
IPM sets parameters for a balanced approach to addressing pest control issues; and 

WHEREAS, IPM addresses the directives of the City of Charlottesville Environmental Sustainability Policy; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Charlottesville Parks and Recreation Department has successfully used an IPM approach 
in grounds management for ten (10) years having effectively managed pests and reduced pesticide use; 
and 

WHEREAS, Charlottesville Parks and Recreation’s environmental efforts received the highest State 
designation for Environmental Excellence, and has been recognized as an environmental leader 
statewide; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Charlottesville, that this Integrated Pest 
Management Policy is hereby adopted as the policy of the City of Charlottesville. 



APPENDIX 4 

SAFER CHEMICAL MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE 



 

County of Albemarle – Local Government Subject:  Safer Chemical Management Procedure 

Document No.: 

SOP-CHEM-01 

Issue Date: 

07-28-2008 

Last Revised: 

07-28-2008 

Page: 

1 of 5 

Prepared By: 

SET/LAC 

Approved By: 

G. Shadman /  

P. Mullaney 

 

Date Printed: 1/7/2010 Page 1 of 5   

1.0 PURPOSE  

The purpose of this procedure is to ensure a safer approach to the selection and application of custodial, 

grounds and pest control operations within the County of Albemarle, as the County aims to minimize chemical 

usage to the greatest extent practicable in its day-to-day operations and activities.  This procedure is intended 

to be implemented as part of the County’s and Schools’ respective Environmental Management Policies. 
 

2.0 DEFINITIONS    

A. Carcinogens refer to any substance or agent that can cause cancer.  Compound listed in the latest edition of 

the Annual Report on Carcinogens, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, National Toxicology 

Program as known or reasonably anticipated to be carcinogenic. 

B. A disinfectant is used on hard inanimate surfaces and its objective is to destroy or irreversibly inactivate 

infectious fungi and bacteria but not necessarily their spores. Disinfectant products are divided into two 

major types: hospital and general use. Hospital type disinfectants are the most critical to infection control 

and are used on medical and dental instruments, floors, walls, bed linens, toilet seats, and other surfaces. 

General disinfectants are the major source of products used in households, swimming pools, and water 

purifiers. (EPA: Pesticides – Antimicrobial Pesticide Products Factsheet; 

http://www.epa.gov/pesticides/factsheets/antimic.htm) 

C. Endocrine disruptors are exogenous substances that act like hormones in the endocrine system and disrupt 

the physiologic function of endogenous hormones. 

D. Integrated Pest Management (IPM) is a pest control strategy that promotes the use of a variety of tactics 

including pest-resistant cultivars and biological, cultural, and physical controls. Pesticides are a control 

tactic employed in IPM, but are only used when needed.  When a pest problem is identified and non-

chemical means are exhausted, only the least toxic and most effective pesticide is used. 

E. A mutagen is a physical or chemical agent that changes the genetic information (usually DNA) of an 

organism and thus increases the frequency of mutations above the natural background level. 

F. A neurotoxin is a substance that is poisonous to nerve tissue (i.e., lead, mercury). 

G. A teratogen is any medication, chemical, infectious disease, or environmental agent that might interfere 

with the normal development of a fetus and result in the loss of a pregnancy, a birth defect, or a pregnancy 

complication.  

H. A sanitizer is used to reduce, but not necessarily eliminate, microorganisms from the inanimate 

environment to levels considered safe as determined by public health codes or regulations. Sanitizers 

include food contact and non-food contact products. Sanitizing rinses for surfaces such as dishes and 

cooking utensils, as well as equipment and utensils found in dairies, food-processing plants, and eating and 

drinking establishments comprise the food contact Sanitizers. These products are important because they 

are used on sites where consumable food products are placed and stored. Non-food contact surface 

sanitizers include carpet sanitizers, air sanitizers, laundry additives, and in-tank toilet bowl sanitizers.  

(EPA: Pesticides – Antimicrobial Pesticide Products Factsheet; 

http://www.epa.gov/pesticides/factsheets/antimic.htm) 

I. Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) are gases emitted from certain solids or liquids, which may have 

adverse health effects (i.e., paints, varnishes, pesticides, cleaning supplies). 

(http://www.epa.gov/iaq/voc.html) 

http://www.epa.gov/pesticides/factsheets/antimic.htm
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Exogenous
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Endocrine_system
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Hormone
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/DNA
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Organism
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Mutation
http://www.hon.ch/Dossier/MotherChild/complications/abortion.html
http://www.hon.ch/Dossier/MotherChild/birth_disorders/birth_defects.html
http://www.hon.ch/Dossier/MotherChild/complications/problems.html
http://www.hon.ch/Dossier/MotherChild/complications/problems.html
http://www.epa.gov/pesticides/factsheets/antimic.htm


County of Albemarle – Local Government Subject:  Safer Chemical Management Procedure 

Document No.: 

SOP-CHEM-01 

Issue Date: 

 

Last Revised: 

07-28-2008 

Page: 

2 of 5 

Prepared By: 

SET/LAC 

Approved By: 

 

 

Date Printed: 1/7/2010 Page 2 of 5 

 

3.0 PROCEDURES    

A. Custodial Operations 

Custodial categories include multipurpose cleaners (e.g. surface cleaners, floor cleaners), specialty 

cleaners (e.g., floor strippers, floor finishes and glass cleaners) and disinfectants.   

1. Multipurpose and Specialty Cleaners   

a. Products used shall be certified by Green Seal, Green Guard, Environmental Choice, or 

Design for the Environment (DfE). 

b. If a product does not have such certification, the product shall not contain carcinogens, 

mutagens, teratogens, endocrine disruptors, or neurotoxins, and contain low or no volatile 

organic compounds (VOC). 

2. Sanitization and Disinfection 

a. High-touch areas will be routinely cleaned or sanitized as deemed appropriate by the manager 

overseeing custodial operations for the facility.  

b. Disinfectants shall be used in response to blood-borne pathogen or bodily fluid incidents, in 

response to viral outbreaks, or as directed by the Virginia Department of Health (VDH). 

 

B. Grounds Care 

“Grounds care” includes both the management of grounds and outdoor pests.  

1. Grounds care departments will continually evaluate the feasibility of changing traditional practices in 

the interest of eliminating chemical usage (e.g., manually pulling weeds).  

2. If it is determined that a chemical application is necessary, then organic or biologically-based 

alternatives shall be used, with the following exceptions:  

a. Treatment of stumps of woody invasive species and poison ivy  

b. Use of non-selective herbicides for spot-treatments of skinned areas of baseball infields and 

warning tracks as needed 

c. One-time application of broad-leaf pre-emergent herbicide to reduce broadleaf weeds, so that 

Bermuda grass can compete with crabgrass for establishment of a new field 

d.  Emergency spot treatment for grub worms 

e. Spot treatment of parking lots, along rip-rap and in ditches 

3. Any County employee or contractor applying pesticides on County or School Board-owned property 

must hold a current Registered Technician or Commercial Applicator License as issued by Virginia 

Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (VDACS).  

4. Each application of pesticide or herbicide must be documented on the “Pesticide/Herbicide Tracking 

Log” (Appendix A), including the amount applied, active ingredient and application location.  

Tracking logs will be maintained by the Environmental Compliance Managers. 

 

C. Indoor Pest Management 

A formal Integrated Pest Management (IPM) program for each school and local government building will 

be completed by August 2008.  IPM procedures will be incorporated as a separate procedure of the 

Environmental Management Policy.  Until a separate IPM Procedure is completed, the following steps will 

be used to make a decision regarding each indoor pest management need: 

1. Physical means of preventing pests will be implemented first. 

2. When pesticides are used, only the least toxic with the most effective outcome shall be used.   

3. Records of all pesticide applications indicating the amount of pesticide, active ingredient and affected 

area will be maintained by the Environmental Compliance Managers. 



County of Albemarle – Local Government Subject:  Safer Chemical Management Procedure 

Document No.: 

SOP-CHEM-01 

Issue Date: 

 

Last Revised: 

07-28-2008 

Page: 

3 of 5 

Prepared By: 

SET/LAC 

Approved By: 

 

 

Date Printed: 1/7/2010 Page 3 of 5 

 

 

D. Employee Safety 

1. County employees will have access to Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for all products used.  

Employees shall follow all guidelines and instructions listed on MSDS, including personal protective 

equipment (PPE) recommendations. 

2. Hazard Communication (HAZCOM) training shall be provided to all employees before use of any 

product requiring a MSDS. 

 

E. Annual Audit  

An annual audit of this procedure will be conducted by the Environmental Compliance Managers.  An 

audit report will be presented to the Board annually for review.   

 

F. Waiver Process 

If a situation arises requiring the use of a product that does not meet the above specifications (e.g., not 

Green Seal certified), then a waiver must be applied for and approved before a product may be purchased 

or used: 

1. The Waiver Request (Appendix B) shall be submitted to the Environmental Compliance Manager for 

the schools or local government, as appropriate, and shall include: the purpose of the requested 

chemical, the MSDS, the area where the chemical will be used, the anticipated frequency and duration 

of use, application technique, and anticipated usage amount. 

2. If a waiver is granted, the written waiver will include an expiration date, and alternatives consistent 

with the procedure must be explored when the waiver expires.  All granted waivers will be presented 

with the annual audit results to the Board. 

3. Any Waiver Requests granted will be provided to the Board on a quarterly basis. 

 

G. Exemptions 

Exemptions to the waiver process include (1) emergency situations that could impact human health or 

safety, and (2) practices required in order to maintain insurance policies. If an emergency situation 

requiring chemical use arises that is not identified in this section, the request for use of a product or 

practice must go through the Waiver Process, as described in Section F.  The following are exemptions to 

Sections A, B, and C of this procedure:   

1. Treatment of bees, wasps or hornets  

2. Periodic termite treatment or other insurance-related pest control requirements 

 



County of Albemarle – Local Government Subject:  Safer Chemical Management Procedure 

Document No.: 

SOP-CHEM-01 

Issue Date: 

 

Last Revised: 

05-20-2008 

Page: 

4 of 5 

Prepared By: 

SET/LAC 

Approved By: 

 

 

Date Printed: 1/7/2010 Page 4 of 5   

Appendix A 

Pesticide / Herbicide / Fertiziler Application Records 

Date 

Time of 
Applica-

tion 
(Indicate 

AM or PM) 

Site 
Pesticide/ 
Herbicide/ 
Fertilizer? 

Brand 
Name  
(Be as 

Specific as 
Possible) 

Amount 
Applied 

(gallons - 
otherwise 
indicate 
units) 

Type of 
Area 

Treated 

Size Area 
Treated 

Treat-
ing 

For? 

Re-entry 
Time?  
(N/A if 

not 
applic-
able) 

Name of 
Applica-tor 

                      

                      

                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



County of Albemarle – Local Government Subject:  Safer Chemical Management Procedure 

Document No.: 

SOP-CHEM-01 

Issue Date: 

 

Last Revised: 

07-28-2008 

Page: 

5 of 5 

Prepared By: 

SET/LAC 

Approved By: 

 

 

Date Printed: 1/7/2010 Page 5 of 5 

Appendix B – Waiver Request Form 
Safer Chemical Management Procedure 

County of Albemarle, VA 

 

Please attach MSDS for all requested products. 

 

General Information:  

 

Date: __________________________ 

 

Name of Requester: ______________ 

 

Department: _____________________ 

 

Details of Request:    

          

Purpose of Application (be specific about what is being treated):  ___________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 

Name of Product(s): __________________________________________________ 

 

Name of Manufacturer(s): _____________________________________________ 

 

Active Ingredient(s): __________________________________________________ 

 

 Anticipated Amount (provide units): ____________________________________ 

 

 Anticipated Duration and Frequency of Application: ______________________ 

 

  Application Technique: ______________________________________________ 

Waiver Request Reviewer(s): 

 

Local Government ECM                                                           School Division ECM 

 

 

Request Granted: 

 

                  Yes                              If No, Reason: _____________________________________ 

Yes  No 

 

Date Granted: ______________     EM Signature(s): _________________________________ 

                                                                                                                    _________________________________ 

 


	Advisory Board Package-April 15 2015
	IPM PLAN March 2015 Draft (2)
	Appendix 4_Chemical Management-Albemarle County
	APPENDIX 4 cover
	SaferChemMngt_Final


